Sunday, September 20, 2009

Louisette Lanteigne

700 Star Flower Ave.

Waterloo Ontario

N2V 2L2

519-885-7619

Regarding Hanlon Park and Jefferson Salamanders

Dear Mayor Farbridge. 
 

I came across a passage on the Mayor’s Blog where you stated the following passage:
 

Extensive investigations by a consultant have concluded that salamander habitat does not exist near the current construction site, and that the construction work will not affect the species. At all stages of the project, the City will continue to work with the Ministry of Natural Resources, exercise all due diligence and conduct ongoing monitoring.

 

First off, I very much appreciate the fact that you have a blog site. It’s admirable to have a public leader who takes the time to communicate with constituents on such matters and I sincerely thank you for that. 

Regarding the statement of the Jefferson Salamanders, speaking in terms of science, I find the passage makes some very broad assumptions regarding the status of the animal and the ramification of this proposal on its potential habitat. 
At this time there is no reasonable evidence available to accurately delineate either the location of Jefferson Salamanders, the identification of their migratory routes in this area or the required bufferzone needed to secure their habitats. One dead salamander does not replace the need for due diligence.
In all fairness I’m assuming that the statements you issued were given under the guidance of others but I wanted to share with you a broader scope of information for consideration in regards to this matter, in good faith, because I care about biodiversity and people’s water supply. From what I have observed, Jefferson salamanders and recharge areas are inseparable. 
 

Jefferson Salamanders can live up to 35 years and are loyal to the pond of their birth. Although the current draft Ontario Recovery Strategy only recognizes a 1km migratory range, in the attachments I have provided a report from the Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program of the Massachusetts Division of Fish and Wildlife noting a migratory route of up to 1.6 km. 
Habitat and migratory routes can be augmented by road networks, salt infiltration, any change to the hydrogeologic flow rates, infiltration rates, water quality or quantity. There is no reasonable data to support the argument that the planned development will NOT affect this species in this particular area.
 

Consider the topic of deer. If the meadows are reduced, the deer will go into the woods and will most likely graze upon young trees and the bark off the older ones, inhibiting the forest's ability to regenerate. That possibility would impact habitat. 

If there are new trees being planted in close proximity or within the recharge areas of the ponds, it may result in changes to water flow, water temperature and ph balance. Coniferous trees augment PH balances which can result in fatality of young salamander larva should the levels exceed 4.5. Great care must be taken to prevent such adverse impacts.
Have there been benthic studies and water monitoring conducted on the vernal ponds affected? If not this should be done in order to protect the current biota including fairy shrimp.  A pre-development and post development monitoring of the ponds is strongly advised to assure that there will be no harmful impacts to this system. Spring thaw studies, particularly in the months of March and April are needed to assess the peak flow to the vernal pond features. Those water levels must be maintained or it will impair the water temperature, water volumes and may result in the drying out of ponds prior to the larvae maturing, potentially causing loss of specimens.
 

Pileated woodpeckers are needed to support the habitats of Jefferson Salamanders. Evidence shows they are currently present in the Hanlon Park area. The woodpeckers are known to consume harmful insects, diseased trees and serve protect the health of the forest network. More importantly they create the habitat for the salamander by dropping the wood to the forest floor. If you remove these birds from the area, it will have adverse impacts for these threatened species. 
 

Coyotes serve to protect both salamanders and low nesting birds from over predation from raccoon and skunks while helping to control deer populations. Removal of coyotes increases predation for amphibians and low nesting birds. If you remove the coyote it can result in an overpopulation of deer which can damage habitat. 
In order to protect the salamanders one must maintain the biodiversity of the area in order to protect the ecosystem.

 

According to the new Ontario Endangered Species Act 2007, in terms of the Jefferson Salamander, species such as the coyote or pileated woodpecker are defined as "habitat" and are therefore protected. Here is the exact passage to support this.

 

Endangered Species Act, 2007 

S.O. 2007, CHAPTER 6 

  

“habitat” means, 

(a) with respect to a species of animal, plant or other organism for which a regulation made under clause 55 (1) (a) is in force, the area prescribed by that regulation as the habitat of the species, or 

(b) with respect to any other species of animal, plant or other organism, an area on which the species depends, directly or indirectly, to carry on its life processes, including life processes such as reproduction, rearing, hibernation, migration or feeding, 

and includes places in the area described in clause (a) or (b), whichever is applicable, that are used by members of the species as dens, nests, hibernacula or other residences; (“habitat”) 

  

http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/statutes/english/elaws_statutes_07e06_e.htm 

 

Based on the recent BC ruling regarding the endangered Nooksack dace, the MNR cannot "reasonably" permit any land or water augmentations in the area unless they have first delineated the habitat for this animal. The same logic is applicable in regards to the Hanlon Park. To date there is no evidence to suggest that damage will NOT be done by the current activities. 
The details on that Supreme Court case can be seen online here:

 

http://www.cbc.ca/canada/british-columbia/story/2009/09/10/bc-nooksack-dace-supreme-court-ruling.html
Please note the following legislation:

Endangered Species Act, 2007 S.O. 2007, CHAPTER 6

48.  Subject to the approval of the Lieutenant Governor in Council, the Minister may establish a committee to make recommendations to the Minister on any matter specified by the Minister that relates to,

(a)   the role, in the administration of this Act, of the precautionary principle, which, as described in the United Nations Convention on Biological Diversity, states that, where there is a threat of significant reduction or loss of biological diversity, lack of full scientific certainty should not be used as a reason for postponing measures to avoid or minimize such a threat;

In truth, I am not a salamander expert however I did recently secure concessions at the Ontario Municipal Board to protect "potential” Jefferson Salamander habitats located in the West Side Lands in the City of Waterloo. In the attachments is the affidavit of Senior Environmental Ecologist Dr. Dean Fitzgerald as used during my OMB process. The case number is PL071044.  If you review sections 24 to 27 you will find concerns which strongly reflect the potential issues of the Hanlon Parkway situation. 

In the end, the MNR supported our efforts to protect the vernal ponds and as a result, no development is allowed in the capture zones. 

 

Other relevant legislation to protect rare species includes:
  

The Species at Risk Act 2002 

http://laws.justice.gc.ca/en/ShowFullDoc/cs/S-15.3//20090918/en 

  

The Fish and Wildlife Conservation Act 

http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/statutes/english/elaws_statutes_97f41_e.htm
  

In order to protect rare species, the function of all the animals required to support its life must by law be maintained.  If the current proposal lacks regard to the protection and preservation of the coyotes or pileated woodpeckers in the area, than it is not a comprehensive analysis and will result in the loss of species. 
It is a fact that 30% of the Grand River’s flow during low periods is from effluent. We are currently 26 times above the MOE limits for phosphates. The Grand River and Lake Erie are on the verge of ecological collapse. Experts state by 2025,  2/3rd of the world’s population will experience water shortages. We are not beyond this risk.
Although the Hanlon Industrial Park was initiated 20 years back we must consider the fact that it was planned without regard to issues of assimilation, invasive species, climate change or Walkerton. We are no longer living in an age where we can whittle away a piece of recharge without paying a significant price in the long term viability of our own water supply. We cannot expect to maintain assimilation capacity if we keep building over top source areas.  
Green Roofs are made with fire retardant liners underneath. The molecules of fire retardant mimic that of PCB minus the chloride component. If you mix the fire retardant with the roof runoff and expose that to water laced with road salt you’ve got PCB. 

Currently the Source Water Protection Act is not fully in place but you have a unique opportunity to use the Species at Risk Act and the Ontario Endangered Species Act 2007 to protect the water recharge areas. If the opportunity exists to reassess this proposal’s approval, by all means do so. In keeping the recharge areas protected you will be investing in the long term assimilation capacity of the Grand River. 
Please keep in mind, there is money to be made in destruction if you’re the agency hired to do remediation of well systems. There are those who stand to profit should a Lake Erie pipeline be required so scrutinize reports very carefully and be aware of potential conflict of interest situations. 
The GRCA does excellent conservation work but keep in mind they are sponsored in part by the agencies whose data they review during planning processes. Sometimes their data comes from reports provided to them with a pro development bias that may not reflect the full view.  

Make sure there are spring thaw water volume assessments for creeks, vernal ponds and bore holes.

Make sure bore hole data goes down deep enough to assess risk. If it’s potential recharge the National Geological Survey of Canada staff recommends a MINIMUM depth of 20 m 
A Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) stratigraphy reading will give you the most accurate view of the area’s recharge capacity. Outwash till can appear as a solid clay covering using bore hole studies but with GPR readings, you see shingle like covering with many spaces in between indicating high recharge capacity. Currently the geologists at the U of Guelph are working with this system. You may wish to ask them if they would like to study the Hanlon Park Area prior to development. They get the learning experience while the municipality gets the data from an objective source upon which a responsible planning decision can be made. The proceeds help to benefit the University. 
I hope this report will help to provide you and city staff with a wider view on the matter and the options available. 
On September 21st, 2009 Simcoe County voted to cancel the Dump Site 41 landfill permanently. As you see, change is possible. 
  

Thank you kindly for your time. 

  

Louisette Lanteigne 

700 Star Flower Ave. 

Waterloo Ontario 

N2V 2L2 

519-885-7619

